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									File # 25-591			
DATE:	August 15, 2025
TO:	Committee on Judiciary, Law Enforcement & General Services

FROM:	Denita Ball, Sheriff, Office of the Sheriff
Brian Barkow, Chief Deputy, Office of the Sheriff

RE:	Mobile Booking Unit Informational Report

Request of Supervisor Belinski, “Can you present an overview of the new collaboration with MPD that the Journal Sentinel is referring to as 'Mobile Booking? Specifically, can you explain how this process works, what impact it may have on jail admissions, and what steps MCSO is taking to ensure the civil rights of the accused are protected during this procedural change?"

The Milwaukee County Sheriff’s Office’s (MCSO) mobile booking unit (MBU), a short-term detention unit on wheels – essentially a secure bus, was acquired in 2005.
The MBU is used to process citation-related offenses in the geographical vicinity of where the alleged offenses occurred, allowing for a more efficient “book and release (with orders to appear in court at a later date)” process for relatively minor offenses, often at public events. In the recent past, for example, the unit has been deployed to Wisconsin State Fair, Harley Fest, and a U.S. presidential primary debate, and in the vicinity of the downtown Milwaukee Water Street entertainment district. People in these settings arrested for more serious offenses are not processed by the MCSO in the MBU but rather are taken into custody by the arresting agency, processed at that agency's department or district station, and afterwards brought by that arresting agency to be booked at the Milwaukee County Jail (or another county's jail). This frees up law enforcement resources at a faster pace and allows them to return to their assignments nearby.
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